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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

September 14, 2017

To the City Council
City of Waldport, Oregon:

Report on Financia!l Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statemenis of the governmenial activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the City of Waldport, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial siatements in
accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United State of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intarnal control relevant tc the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statemenis that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Luditor's Responeihifity

Our responsibility is {o express opinions on these financial siatements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generaliy accepted in the United States of America and the
standards appficable to financial audits confained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures t¢ obtain audit evidence abaut the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit proccedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit alse includes evaluating the appropriaieness of
accounting policies used and the reascenablenass of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financiat statemeants.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, the financia! statemenis referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respeciive
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and sach major fund of the City
of Waldport as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principies generally accepted in the
United States of America,

Phone 541 255 2882 FOX 541 345 3358
www.em,emw!cpa.com



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, the schedule of net pension liability and budgetary comparison information on the
General Fund and the Major Special Revenue Funds be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reparting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
appliec certair limited procedures to management's discussion and analysis and the schedule of net pension
lability in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the informaticn and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
“other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an apinion
or provide any assurance on management's discussion and analysis because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The budgetary
- comparison information as shown in the table of contents has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, in our opinion, s fairly stated in all material respecte
in refation 1o the basic financial statements as a whole.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financiai statements that collectively
comprise the City of Waldport's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements as listed in the table of contents as supplementary information are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. These fund financial statements are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directiy to the underiying accounting and
other records used fo prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directiy to the underlying accounting and other records used o
prepare the financial statements or fo the financial statements themseives, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards and Oregon Revised Statutes

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 14,
2017, on our consideration of the City of Waldport's interna! contrel over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regutations, coniracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not te provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Waldport's internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have aiso issued our
report dated September 14, 2017, on our consideration of the City of Waldport's infernai control over financial
reporting and on ‘tests of its compiiance with the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in
Oregon Administrative Rules OAR 162-10-000 to 162-10-320. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

E/W/&,M CDA M/fa—r,gf[z jLé’«P

Emerald CPA Group, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
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CITY OF WALDPORT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2017

This management’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of financial activities and financial position
for the City of Waldport for fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. The analysis focuses on significant financial
issues, major financial activities, and resulting changes in financial position, budget changes, and specific
issues related to funds and the economic factors affecting the city.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

« The assets of the City exceeded its Habilities by 511,464,054 {net position} as of lune 30, 2017. Of
this amount, $9,800,271 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

e Total revenues for fiscal year ending 2017 increased $116,715 over the previous year. The total
expenses for programs and services decreased $430,969 because the previous year included an
actuarially estimated pension expense of $456,178. beyond the amounts contributed to PERS,
attributed to a court challenge that reversed legislative changes.

DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business and include the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities. The government-wide financia! statements include not only the City itseif (known as
the primary government), but aiso two legally separate eniities for which the City is financially accountabie,
the Waldport Urban Renewal Agency and the Waldport Road District.

e The Statement of Net Position focuses on resources available for future operation and presents all of
the City's assets and liabifities, with the difference of the two reported as net assets. The net
difference, or net assets, is further separated into amounts restricted for specific purposes and
unrestricted amounts.

¢ The Statement of Activities focuses on activities during the most recent fiscal year and how those
activities contributed to the change in net assets. Revenues and expenses are reporied when the
undertying event occurs regardless of the timing of cash fiows. The statement provides an analysis
to determine the extent to which programs are self-supporting or subsidized by general revenues.

Fund financial statements segregate resources and their related expenditures to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with financial and legal requirements. Budgetary comparison statements are presented for the
funds as well.

Governmental funds and proprietary funds use different accounting approaches. Governmental funds are
reported using modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. Proprietary funds are reported using accrual basis for accounting and include
ail assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds.

GOVERNMENT WIDE CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities include all assets and liabilities using the

accrual basis for accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. All of
the current year revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.



Net position, the difference between assets and labilities, is one way to measure the city’s financial health or
position. Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the city’s property tax base and the condition of city
utilities and roads, also need to be considered to assess the overall health of the city.

City of Waldport

Statement of Net Position

Governmenta!l Business Type Cityas a
Activities Activities Whole
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Assets:

Cash and investments 895,747 1,082,197 643,775 641,014 1,539,522 1,723,211
Otherassets . 169,869 147,843 171,348 180,155 341,218 327,798
Deferred pensicon outflows 25,012 80,754 26,815 100,214 51,927 190,668
Capital assets 2,573,337 2,575,350 9,839,353 9,808,817 12,412,650 12,384,167
Total assets 3,663,565 3,395,044 10,681,392 10,730,200 14,345,357 14,626,144
Labitities:

Current liabilitias 146,723 147,324 118,161 178,955 264,834 326,289
Deferred pansion outflows 20,694 24,492 22,268 27,045 42,962 51,538
Long term debt cutstanding 1,045,852 1,006,863 1,535,601 1,473,054 2,581,453 2,479,917
.Netpension liabitity 79,162 144,634 85,185 159,712 164,348 304,346
Total liabitities 1,252,432 1,323,313 1,761,215 1,838,777 3,053,647 3,162,090
Netposition:

Netinvestmentin capital

assets 1,488,821 1,529,488 8,240,091 8,270,773 9,728,912 8,800,271
Restricted 445,939 514,942 94,551 © 90,463 540,490 605,405
Unrestricted 436,773 528,191 585,535 530,187 1,022,308 1,058,378
Total netposition 2,371,533 2,572,631 8,820,177 8,891,423 11,281,710 11,464,054

As of June 30, 2017, the city had 512,384,167 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including water,
wastewater, and street utility systems, Additions to capital assets inciuded an industrial area master pian, an
excavator, a parks master plan, and Eckman Creek fiood repairs. More detailed information about the city’s
capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial statements,

As of lune 30, 2017, the city owed 52,479,917 of long-term principal debt. Detailed information abaout the
city's fong term debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by 511,464,054 (net position} as of June 30, 2017. Of this
amount, $9,80C,271 is invesied in capital assets, net of related debt. Net position for governmental fund
activities includes long-term governmental principal debt of 51,006,863, the voter-approved general
obligation bond. Taxes are levied annually, as provided by law, to pay the principal and interest on the
general obligation bond.  Proprietary fund activities resuited in net position of 58,891,423, which are
primarily invested in capital assets.



City of Waldport

Statement of Activities

Program Revenues:

Charges forservices

Grants and contributions
General Revenues:

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Gain on sale of capitai assets
Interest

Total Revenues

Expenses:

General government
Public safety

Streets, storm water
Culture, recraation
Economicdevelopment
Interest on dept
Water

Wasiewaier

Total Expenses

Excess {deficiency) before
transfers

Contributed capital
Transfers in {out)

Changes in net position

Netposition at beginning of
vear

Netpesition atend of year

Governmental Business Type Cityas &
Activities Activities Whoie

2016 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
53,823 55,840 1,255,854 1,228,038 1,308,777 1,283,875
107,576 200,323 6,332 16,236 112,808 216,558
911,843 978,001 - 811,843 578,001
361,531 353,274 - 361,531 353,274
- 25,000 25,000 -
4,879 9,241 2,825 5,524 7,704 14,765
1,435,652 1,556,679 1,280,111 1,249,795 2,728,763 2,846,478
598,268 448 664 - 598,268 448,664
362,801 358,157 362,801 359,197
318,906 315,636 - - 318,306 315,836
387,383 327,807 - 387,383 327,807
33,989 23,544 - 33,989 23,544
48,876 47,308 - - 48,876 47,308
- - 650,812 548,436 650,812 548,436
754,068 503,542 704,068 603,542
1,750,223 1,522,156 1,354,88C 1,151,978 3,105,103 2,674,134
{310,571) 74,523 {64,769} 97,821 {375,340) 172,344

134,367 126,575 {134,357} {126,575) -

(176,204) 201,098 {199,136} (28,754} {375,340} 172,344
2,547,737 2,371,533 9,119,313 8,920,177 11,667,050 11,291,710
2,371,533 2,572,631 8,920,177 8,801,423 11,291,710 11,464,054

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 (GASB 68) established new accounting and
financial reporting requirements and changed how employers measure pension expense and report pension
liabllities on financial reports. Under GASB 68 financial reports show pension expense as the change in Net
Pension Liability, the excess of the actuarial accrued liability over the actuarial value of assets. in the prior
fiscal year (2016), the city’s net position decreased $375,340, as a resuk of actuarially estimated pension
expenses of 5456,178 beyond emplayer rate contributions due to the court chalienge, Moro v. State of

Oregan, that reversed legisiative changes (Senate Bilis §22 and 861).

For fiscal year 2017 actuarially

estimated pension expenses of $9,533 beyond employer rate contributions are inciuded in the city's
Statement of Activities. More detailed information about the defined benefit pension pian is presented in
the notes to the financial statements.



The city's fiscal year 2017/2018 budget has appropriated $1,039,154 for capital outlays, which includes
wastewater infrastructure to the industrial park, McKinney Slough waterline relocations, and waier and
wastewater master plan updates. An Oregon Business Development borrowing of $440,000 for wastewater
infrastructure to the industrial park is planned for the upcoming year {2017/2018), payable from Urban
Renewal revenues,

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the end of the fiscal year, fund balances for all governmental funds increased $164,981 over the previous
year. Governmental grants and contributions totaled $200,323 for the fiscal year and inciuded 583,846 for
the Industrial Park Master Plan, & bequeathad donation of $58,485 for the tibrary, and $28,173 for park
improvements. Property {ax revenues increased $35,614 or 5% from the previous year. Franchise tax
revenues increased 12,189, primarily due to cold weather impacts on eiectric bills, and transient room tax
revenues increased 522,157, primarily due to a new hotel in town. A decrease in Lincoin County District
Library revenues was siightly offset by State Revenue Sharing for legalized marijuana.

General government expenditures include a .5 FTE increase at City Hall. Public safety expenditures reflect a
decrease in costs for contract services with Lincoln County Sheriff. Recreation expenditures include & .3 FTE
increase at Waldport Public Library for most of the yeat, and a .2 FTE increase beginning in May for the
tibrary and community center.

Waldport Urban Renewal #2 received and repaid loan proceeds of $120,000. The proposed borrowing of
$440,000 for fiscal year 2017/2018 would bring total URH2 borrowings to $790,000 out of the $13,600,000
maximum indebiedness.

At the end of the fiscal year, fund balances for alt business type funds decreased 528,752 from the previous
year. Water and wastewater charges for services decreased slightly from the previous year due to a
decreased number of system development charges. Water rates increased 3% effective luiy 2017 and usage
was comparable to the previous vear, The water fund received grant procesds of $16,236 for water
improvements from FEMA and Infrastructure Finance Authority. Both water and wastewater materials and
services increased 2% over the previous year.

BUDGETARY CHANGES

Two resolutions were adopted during the fiscal vear to amend the city's originally adopted budget. Total
appropriations increased by $88,300 for the purchase of @ new excavator and street improvements, Public
works distribution services were greater than anticipated due to high rainfalls necessitating a budget transfer
of $20,000 from contingency to materials and services.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Waldport's elected and appointed officials consider many factors when setting the budget, tax rates, and fees
charged for services and activities. One of those factors is a consideration of the economic conditions of the
Waldport area. Waldport has an estimated population of 2,080 and is iocated on the Pacific Ocean in the
central portion of the Oregon Coast in Lincoin County.  Alsea Bay, Alsea River, Lint Slough, and the Stusiaw
National Forest offer some outstanding natural features in Waldport, and current community efforts are
underway to “market” these recreational cpportunities to tourists, as wel! as increase opporturities for our
citizens.

The financiat condition of the City is stable and adequate to provide the range of services as expected by our
citizens. The City can implement plans and necessary infrastructure improvements to meet the needs of
future years as welt as respond to immediate issues. We remain conservative and efficient in our provision of
basic services, as well as look at opportunities for enhancement to achieve City goals and objectives,



FINANCIAL CONTACT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of Waldport's finances and to show the city’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed ta: Kerry E. Kemp, City Manager, City of Watdport, PO Box 1120, Waldport, OR 97394,
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CITY OF WALDPORT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivabies:

Accounts {net)

Property taxes

Special assessmeants
Cash and cash eguivaients - restricted
Investments - restricted
iInventories

Capita! assets:
Nondepreciable capital assets
Construction in process
Depreciable assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payabie

Prepaid business licenseas

Compensated absences payable

Accrued interest payable

Current portion of capital iease payable

Current portion of general obligation bonds payable
Current portion of revenue bond payable

Current portion of notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Capital lease pavable {net of current portion)
General cbligation bonds pavable (net of current portion)
Revenue bond payable {net of current portion)
Notes payable (net of current portion)
Net pension liability

Total long-term tiabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of rescurces:
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Total iiabilities and deferred infiows of resources

NEY POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Streets

Footpaths and bicycie trails

System development

Urban renewal construction
Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

& 762,223 $ 482,973 $ 1,245,196
68,640 126,776 185,416
68,236 - 68,236
- 3,952 3,852
153,006 158,041 311,047
166,968 - 166,868
10,767 49,427 650,194
1,229,840 821,169 2,051,00¢
205,654 343,864 549,558
21,712 459,360 481,072
2,347,944 5,005,593 11,353,537
2,575,350 9,808,817 12,384,167
3,805,190 10,629,985 14,435,176
90,754 106,214 190,968
$ 3,895,044 $ 10,730,200 $ 14,626,144
A 24,243 $ 60,079 g 84,322
9,525 - 8,525
31,426 35,538 66,564
43,141 18,358 61,499
38,989 - 38,989
- 17,118 17,118
- 47,871 47,871
147,324 178,965 326,289
1,006,863 - 1,006,863
- 668,923 668,923
- 804,131 804,131
144,634 159,712 304,346
1,151,497 1,832,766 2,784,263
1,288,821 1,811,731 3,110,652
24,492 27,046 51,538
1,323,313 1,838,777 3,162,080
1,529,498 8,270,773 9,800,271
184,017 - 184,017
5,062 - 5,062
24,282 90,463 114 745
301,579 “ 301,579
528,193 530,187 1,058,380
& 2,572,631 S 8,891,423 ¢ 11,464,054

The notes to the basic financiat statements are an integral part of this statement,

g



CITY OF WALDPORT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fi

al Year Ended

ne 30 2017

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position

Total
Charges for Operating Capital Total Business
Services & Grants and  Grants and Governmental Type
Functions/Progirams Expenses Contracts Contributions Contribution:  Acftivities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
General government % 448,664 % 19,054 3 - % E $ (429,610} 5 - % (429,610}
Public safety 359,197 14,304 2,500 - (342,393) - {342,393)
Highways and streets 315,636 - - - {315,638) - {315,638)
Culture and recreation 327,807 22,482 98,214 - (207,1110) - {207,111)
Economic development 23,544 - a9 609 - 76,065 - 76,065
Interest expense 47,308 - - - (47,308 - {47,308)
Total governmentai activities 1,522,156 55,840 206,323 - {1,265,993) - (1,265,893}
Business-type activities:
Water 548,436 615,942 16,236 - - 83,742 83,742
Sewer 603,542 612,066 - - - 8,554 £.554
Total business-tyne activities 1,151,878 1,228,038 16,236 - - 92,295 92,256
Teotal government ¢ 2,574,134 § 1283878 s 216,559 & - (1,265,993} 92,296 $ (1,173.657)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpases 571,205 - 571,205
Property taxes, levied for dedicated purposes 203,431 - 203,431
Intergovernmental aid not restricted to specific purposes 63,308 - 63,308
Intergovernmental ald restricted to specific purpeses 289,566 - 285 966
Franchise and room taxes 203,365 - 203,365
Intarest and investment eamings G, 241 5,525 14,766
Total General Revenues 1,340,516 5,525 1,346,041
Dther
Transfer in {out) 126,575 (126,575} -
Total Other 126,575 {126,575) -
Changes in net position 201,098 (28,754 172,344
et posltion - beginning of year 2,371,533 8,820,177 11,291,710
Net position - end of year $ 2572631 4 5891423 ¢ 11 464,054

The notes to the bask financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.
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CITY OF WALDPORT
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

dune 30, 20317

Urban Urban Renewal Road
General Street Renawal Debt Service District Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents % 437,543 $ 171,045 § 276,006 % 25,323 % 5,312 915,229
Investments 166,968 - - - - - 166,968
Receivables (net)
Accounts receivable 57,640 11,000 - - - 68,640
Property taxes 50,395 - - 4,837 13,004 68,236
Inventory - 10,767 - - - 10,767
Total assets $ 712,546 $ 192,812 & 276,006 $ 30,160 $ 18,316 1,229,840
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 14,498 $ 8,745 % - % - -3 - 24,243
Unearned revenues 9,525 - - - - 9,525
Total liabilities 24,023 9,745 - - - 33,768
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavaiiable revenue ~ property taxes 47,595 - - 4,587 12,304 654,486
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - 10,767 - - - 10,767
Restricted 286,377 172,300 276,006 25,573 6,012 766,268
Assigned 153,062 - - - - 153,062
Unassigned 201,489 - ~ - - 201,489
Total fund balances 640,528 183,067 276,006 25,573 6,012 1,131,586
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resourcas and fund balances $ 712,546 $ 192,812 $ 276,006 $ 30,160 $ 18,316 1,229,840

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WALDPORT
Reconciliation of Governmentai Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

Total fund balances - governmential funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Certain assets are not current financia! resources in governmental funds, but
instead are reported in the Statement of Net Position:

Capital assets, net of depreciation $ 2,575,350
Net pension liability (144,634)
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 20,754

The Statement of Net Position reports receivabies at their net realizable
value, However, receivables not available to pay for current period
expenditures are deferred in governmental funds:

Property taxes
All liabilities are reported in the Statement of Net Position, however, if they

are not due and pavyabie in the current period, they are not recorded in
the governmental funds:

Compensated absences payabie (31,426)
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (24,492
Accrued interest payable on note payable (43,141)

Bond payabie (1,045,852)
Capital lease payable -

Total net position - governmental activities

$ 1,131,586

2,521,470

64,486

(1,144,911}

$ 2,572,631

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues:

Property taxes

Franchise and room taxes

Intergovernmenta!

Fees, ficenses and
charges for services

Fines and forfeits

Interest earnings

Donations and grants

Tatal revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Paublic safety
Highways and streefs
Culture and recreation
Economic devejopment

Capital outlay

Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sourcas (uses):
Transfer in
Transfer out
Issuance of debt
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

CITY OF WALDPORY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Urban Urban Renewat Road

General Streat Renewal Debt Sarvice District Total
$ 572,978 % - $ - $ 59,608 §$ 143,624 % 776,210
203,365 - - - - 203,365
228,893 124,381 - - - 353,274
45,954 140,000 - - - 185,854
14,304 - - - - 14,304
4,473 1,396 2,602 488 281 4,240
200,323 - - - - 200,323
1,270,290 265,777 2,602 60,096 143,905 1,742,670
438,731 - - - - 439,731
359,197 - - - - 359,197
- 213,822 - - 140,414 354,236
270,995 - - - - 27(,995
13,985 . 9,558 - - 23,543
153,696 16,707 - - - 170,403
86,053 - - 120,105 - 206,158
1,323,657 230,529 8,558 120,105 140,414 1,824,263
(53,367} 35,248 (6,956 (60,009} 3,491 (81,5937
237,058 - - - - 237,056
{81,600) {28,881) - - - {110,481)
- - 120,000 - 128,000
155,456 {28,881 120,000 - - 246,575
102,089 6,367 113,044 (60,009) 3,491 164,982
538,839 176,700 162,962 85,582 2,521 966,604
$ 640,828 $ 183,067 $ 276,006 $ 25,573 % 6,012 $ 1,131,586

The notes to the basic financisl statements are an integral part of this statement.
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‘ CITY OF WALDPORT
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities ars
different because:

Governmental funds defer revenues that do not provide current financial resources.
However, the Statement of Activities recognizes such revenues at their net
realizable value when earned, regardiess of when received:

Property taxes

Capital outiays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures. However, for governmental activities those costs are
shown in the Statement of Net Position and allocated over their estimated
useful lives as annuat depreciation expenses tn the Statement of Activities.
This is the amount of capital outiay netted with depreciation and
dispositions during the period.

Capital outlay 170,403

Depreciation and disposifions {168,390)

In the governmental funds, long-term liabilities are recorded when paid and
amortization expenses are not reported. On the Statement of Activities,
they are recorded when accrued.

Changes in compensated absences payable 1,002

Changes in accrued interest payable {1,542)

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits
garned net of employee contributions is reported as pension expenses.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to the
governmental funds whiie the repayment of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources. However, neither has any effect on the
Statement of Activities:

Repayment of debt 38,715

Change in net position of governmental activities

$ 164,982

(1,574)

2,013

(540)

(2,498)

38,715

$ 201,008

The notes to the basic financiai statements are an integral part of this statement.

14



CITY OF WALDPORT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 38, 2017

Business-type

Activitias
Public Waorks
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Internal
Water Wastewater Totals Service Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents % 89,769 ¢ 280,508 $ 370,277 $ 112,696
Accounts receivabie - net 78,029 48,747 126,776 -
Assessments receivable - 3,952 3,952 -
Restricted assets - cash 87,249 70,762 158,041 -
Inventory 43,923 5,504 49 427 -
Yotal current assets 298,970 409,503 708,473 112,656
Capital assets:
Land 89,757 10,741 100,498 177,223
Water rights 66,143 - 66,143 -
Construction in process 435,707 23,653 459 360 -
Depreciable assets, net of depreciation 2,485,382 5,925,357 &,410,739 594,854
Total capital assets, net 3,076,989 5,959,751 9,036,740 72077
Total assets 3,375,959 6,368,254 9,745,213 884,773
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred amounts retated to pensions - - - 100,214
Total assets and deferred cutflows $ 3,375,058 $ 6,369,254 $ 0,745,213 $ 984,987
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Current liabilities {payable from current assets).
Accounts payable $ 56,838 $ 501 $ 57,339 $ 2,740
Compensated absences payable - - - 35,538
Accrued interest payable 1,845 7,075 8,920 9,438
Current portion of revenue bond payabie - 17,119 17,119 -
Current portion of notes payable 33,680 - 33,680 14,181
Total current liabilities 92,363 24,695 117,058 61,907
Long-term liabilities:
Revenue bond payable (net of current portion} - 668,923 668,923 -
Notes payable (net of current portion) 357,381 - 357,381 446,750
Net pension liabllity - - - 159,712
Total long-term liabilities 357,381 668,923 1,026,304 606,462
Total Habilities 445 744 693,618 1,143,362 668,360
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions - - 27,046
Net position: _
Net investment in capital assets 2,685,928 5,273,709 7,859,637 311,136
Expendable, restricted for:
System develepment 65,089 25,374 90,463 -
Unrestricted 175,198 376,553 551,751 (21,564
Total net position $ 2,926,215 $ 5,675,636 8,601,851 ¢ 289,572
Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position - Business-Type Activities
Inciusion of Internal Service Fund 289,572
Net position at end of year, Statement of Net Position - Business-Type Activities $ 8,891,423

The notes 1o the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WALDPORT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Business-type Activitias-Enferprise Funds

Business-type
Activities
Public Works
Internal

Water Wastewater Totals Service Fund
Operating revenues;

Charges for services, net of bad debt $ 615,942 $ 612,096 $ 1,228,038 % 889,690
Total operating revenues 615,542 612,096 1,228,038 889,690
Operafing expenses:

Current:
Personne! services - - - 767,965
Materials and services 466,985 433,547 800,532 78,861
Depreciation 71,843 137,685 209,528 33,489
Total operating expenses 538,828 571,232 1,110,060 BRBO,315
Cperating income (loss) 77,114 40,864 117,978 8,375
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Grants & contributions 16,236 - 16,236 -

Interest earnings 1,813 2,868 4,681 843

Interest expense (6,104) (28,808) (34,812} (16,380)
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) 11,945 {25,840} (13,895 {15,537
Income (loss) before transfers and contributions 892,059 14,824 103,983 (65,1623
Transfers and contributions:

Transfers out (65,587) (60,988) (126,575) -
Change in net positien 23,472 (46,064 (22,592) (6,162}
Net position at beginning of year 2,902,743 5,721,700 §,624,443 295,734
Net position at eng of year % 2,926,215 $ 5,675,636 $ 8,601,851 & 286,572
Reconciliation of change in net position on the Statement

of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position-

Proprietary Funds to the change in net position on the

Statement of Activities - Business-Type Activities

Change in net position - Proprietary Funds $ (22,592}

inclusion of Internal Service Fund {6,162)

Change in net position - Business-Type Activities $ (28,754)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integra! part of this statement.
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CITY OF WALDPORT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Increase (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Business-type

Activities

Public Warks

Internal

Water Wastewater Totais Service Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers $ 610,162 $ 611,265 § 1,221,427 % -

Receipts from interfund services provided - - - 889,650

Cash paid to employees - - - (B25,657)

Cash paid to suppliers {(418,831) (430,459) {849,290) {77,282)
Net cash provided (used} by operating activities 151,331 180,806 372,137 (13,249
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Transfers to other funds {65,587} (60,988} (126,575) -
Net cash provided (usad) by noncapitat financing activities: {65,587} (60,988) (126,575} -
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Grant, lcan and insurance proceeds 16,236 - 16,236 -

Purchase of capital assets (121,444 {20,151) {141,595} -

Interest paid (6,316) {28,877} {35,293) (16,660}

Principal payments on long-term debt (33,616) {16,441} (50,057 (13,22%)
Net cash provided {used) by capital and related

financing activities {145,140} (65,569} (210,709} (29,889}
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest on investments 1,813 2,868 4,681 843
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities: 1,813 2,868 4,681 843
MNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents {17,583) 57,117 39,534 {42,295)
Cash and cash eguivaients at beginning of year

(including restricted cash of $200,996) 194,601 294,183 488,784 154,991
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

{including restricted cash of $162,129) $ 177,018 ¢ 351,300 & 528,318 $ 112,696

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided {used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 77,114 $ 40,864 § 117,978 % 9,375
Adjustments o reconciie operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 71,843 137,685 209,528 33,489

Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivabie (5,780} (832) {6,612} -
Inventory (4,827} 2,733 (2,194} -
Assessments receivable - - - -
Accounts payable 53,081 356 53,437 1,579
Deferred infiow/outflows related to pension - - - (62,705)
Accrued payroll and benefits - - - 5,013
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 191,331 $ 180,806 $ 372,137 $ {13,249)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CiTY OF WALDPORT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 3¢, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

Reporting Entity

The City of Waidport (City), Lincoin County, Oregon, a municipal corporation, provides for public
improvements and general administrative services. The City operates under a City Council-City Manager
form of government consisting of seven elected members and a City Manager directly responsible to them.

The basic financial statements inciude all financial activities, organizations and functions for which the City
Council is responsible for financial accountability. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a
veting majority of the component unit's board, and either a) the abiiity to impose its will on the component
unit, or b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden
on the primary governmaent.

In evaiuating how to define the City for financial reporiing purposes, management has considered all poieniiat
component units. Based on the application of the criteria estabiished by GASB, the City of Waldport's Urban
Renewal Agency and Special Road District #3 are component units of the City.

Blended Component Units. The Waldport Urban Renewal Agency (Agency} was created by adoption of City
Ordinance 435 in 1981. The Agency is organized under general laws pertaining 1o urban renewal agencies in
the State of Oregon. The Waldport Special Road District #3 {Road District), was created by adoption of City
Ordinance 488 in 1983. The Road District is organized under general jaws pertaining to road districts in the
State of Oregon. The City is neither responsibie for deficits nor entitied to surpiuses of the Agency or Road
District, The Agency and District Boards are appointed by and made up of the same members as the
Commaon Council of the City; therefore the City has the ability to impose its will on both the Agenay and the
Road District, Therefore, based on standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the
Agency and Road District are considered fo be "component units” of the City. In addition, the City has
operafional responsibiiity for both the Agency and the Road District. Accordingly, the financial statements of
the Agency and Road District are included in the City's basic financial statements as special revenue funds
using the "blended" method of presentation. A copy of the Agency’'s and Road District's financial statements
can be obtained from the City of Waldport, 125 Alsea Hwy, Walgport, Oregon 97394,

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepied in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied o government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financiai reporting principles.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities
display information about the City as a whole, These statements include the financial activities of the prirnary
government. The statements distinguish between those activities of the City that are governmental and
those that are considered business-type aciivities. interfund activity such as loans and transfers are
gliminated to avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses.

Gavernmental activities — The City's general government activities are reported in this category, including the
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. Funding sources vary and include property taxes and
intergovernmental revenues.

Business-type activities — The City provides water and wastewater services fo its customers and this
category reporis the activities of the proprietary funds.
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CITY GF WAL DPORT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in preparation of the proprietary fund financial
statements but differs from the manner in which governmenial fund financial statements are prepared.
Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, inciude a reconciliation with brief explanations to better

identify the relationship between the governmeni-wide siatements and the statements for governmenial
funds.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s
governmental activities, Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or
department and are, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues inciude charges
paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program and coniributions that are resricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particuiar program. Revenues that are not ciassified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the exient to which each business segment
or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

The City first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted assets are avaiiable.

Fund Financtal Statements. Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. The
accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an independent fiscal
and accounting entity with a seli-batancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related
legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and
managerial reguirements, The various funds of the City are grouped into the categories governmental and
proprietary.

The financial statements for the governmenta! funds are & Balance Sheet, which generaity inciudes onty
current assets and current liabilities, and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances, which reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses {i.e.,
expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources.

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a fiow of economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on
the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position
presents increases {i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net fotal assets. The Statement of
Cash Fiows provides information about how the City finances and meets the cash fiow needs of its
proprietary activities,

Governmental funds are used to account for the City's general government activities. Governmental fund
types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (L.e., when they are "measurable and available™).

"Measurable” means the amount of the fransaction can be determined and "availabie" means collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on generat long-term debt
which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims of judgments which are
recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

19



CITY OF WALDPORT

| NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

An accrual for unearned revenue arises in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet when potential revenue
does not meet the earned and availabie criteria for recognition in the current period. A deferred infiow of
resources consisis of uncoliectec properiy taxes not deemed available to finance operations of the current
pericd. in the government-wide Statement of Activities, with a full accruat basis of accounting, revenue is
recognized as soon as it is earned regardiess of its availability. Thus, the deferred inflow creaied on the
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet for unavailable revenue is eliminated. Unearned revenues arise ouiside
the scope of measurement focus and basis of accounting, such as when the City received resources before
it has a legal claim to them. An example of this would be when grant monies are received prior 1o the
incurrence of qualifying expenses.

Franchise taxes, special asssessments, licenses, fees and permits, interest and charges for services are
suscepiible to accrual if collected within 30 days of fiscal year end. Properly {axes receivable are subject to
accrual if received within 60 days of fiscal year end. All other property taxes are offset by defarred property
tax inflows of resources and, accordingly, have not been recorded as revenue. Other receipts become
measurable and available when cash is received by the City and are recognizecd as revenue at that time.

Intergovernmental revenues are recognized as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met. There
are, however, essentiaily two types of intergovernmenta! revenues. In one, monies must be expended on
the specific purpese or project before any amounts will be paid o the City; therefore, all sligibility
requirements are determined to be met when the underlying expenditures are recorded. In the other, monies
are virtually unrestricted as to the purpose of the expenditure and are usually revocabie only for faiture to
comply with prescribed requirements; therefore, all eligibility requirements are determined to be met at the
time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

The City presents separate financial statemants for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmentat funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported in separate cotumns in the
fund financial statements. The City has elected to present its componeni units as major funds,

Major governmental funds inciude:

General Fund - This fund is the City's primary aperating fund. This fund is used to account for and report all
financial resources not accounied for and reporied in another fund. The General Fund also accounts for
servicing of governmental long-term debt,

Street Fund - This fund is a Special Revenue fund, usec to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenus sources that are iegally restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes. The primary
sources of revenue are state highway fund revenues and charges for services.

Urban Renewal Construction Fund - This Special Revenue fund accounts for and reports on the proceeds
of specific revenues sources that are restricted to expendiiure for project activities of the Urban Renewal
Plan. Loan proceeds are used 1o construct or carry out these projects.

Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund — This fund accounis for and reports on the specific tax increment
revenues that are restricted for expenditures for debt service on Urban Renewal projects. Revenues raised
under Section ¢, Article IX of the Oregon Constitution, and ORS Chapter 457 are pledged irrevocable to the
retirement of indebledness,

Road District Fund - This Special Revenue fund is used to account for and report property taxes and
transactions related to road improvements.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the fiow of economic resources measurement focus and use the

accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
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CITY OF WALDPORT

NOTES YO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Proprietary funds include the foliowing fund types:

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to privaie business or where the Council has decided that the determination of revenues earned, cosis
incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.

internal service funds are used to account for those activities and services furnished internally to other funds
within the City on a cost reimbursement basis. Charges are made to the various funds to suppart these
activities. This fund type is also used to account for activities proviced to other entities.

Major enterprise funds inciude;

Water Fund - This fund is used 1o account for and report on the activilies of the water treatment and
distribution system.

Wastewater Fund - This fund is used to account for and report on the activities of the wastewaier
conveyance and freatment system.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating revenues and expenses.
Operating revenues and expenses generaily result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operafions. All revenues and expenses not
meeting these definitions are reporied as non-operating revenues and expenses.

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly fiquid investments (including
restricied assets) purchased with 2 maturity of three months or less {0 be cash egquivaienis. The City's
cash and cash eguivalents are cash on hand, demand deposits and investiments in the Oregon Siate
Treasury Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

The City maintains merged bank accounts and invesiments for #s funds in a ceniral pool of cash and
investiments. The investment policy of the City is fo invest in the LGIP and interest bearing demand
deposits with local banks and to transfer resources 1o the general checking account as the need arises.
This policy is in accordance with ORS 294.035 which specifies the fypes of invesiments authorized for
municipal corporations. The City aliocales earnings on investiments to selected funds based on the
average monthiy balances throughout the year

investments are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair vaiue,
2. Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of iending/borrowing arrangements oufstanding at the
end of the fiscat year are referred to as either "inter-fund receivabies/pavables” (i.e., the current portion of
inter-fund toans) or "advances to/ffrom other funds” {i.e., the non-current portion of inter-fund loans). All
other ouistanding balances between funds are reported as “due toffrom other funds."

Other receivables including property iaxes, accounis, entilements, and shared revenues are reported in
accordance with the policies enumerated in Paragraph B above, Fines and permit revenue are not
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. An allowance for
uncoliectibles has been established for the Water and Wastewater Funds and represents the portion of
receivables not expected to be collecied.
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CITY OF WALDPORT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Inventories

inveniories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFC} method. The
costs of proprietary fund type inveniories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Restricted Assets

Certain resources are set aside for repayment of debt and are ciassified as restricied cash on the
Statemnent of Net Position because their use is limited. Resiricted assets are used to report resources
legally restricted for system development improvements or capacity increasing capital improvemenis to
the water and wastewater system, for the purpose of making principal and interest paymenis on the
bonds and notes payable, and other items required by third parties. For the fiscal year ending June 30,
2017, the City had $478.015 in restricted assets.

Capital Assefs

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
refirements during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date
received. Thne cost of nermal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. The City maintains a capitalization threshold of $10,000
and an initial useful life of more than one reporting period. Improvements are capitalized. Interest paid
on construction financing is capitalized in the Proprietary funds and in the governmental activities in the
Statements of Net Position.

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary
funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. For governmenial
activities these costs are shown in the Statement of Net Position and aliocated over their estimated useful
lives as annual depreciation expenses in the Statement of Activities. Capital assefs utilized by the
proprietary funds are reported in the business-type activities column of the government-wide Statement of
Net Position and in the respective funds.

All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. improvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the retated capital assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-iine method over the following useful lives:

Equipment 5-15 years
Buildings 50 years
Water and wastewater systems 5-100 years
Sireets 20 years
Other improvements 10-30 vears

Deferred Infiows/Outflows of Resources

In addition fo assets, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that

applies to fulure periods and so will not be recognized as an outfiow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then.
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CITY OF WALDPORT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reporis a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue} until that time,

The City has one type of ilem, which arises only under the modified accruai basis of accounting, that
gualifies for reporting in this category. The item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet.

The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes. These amounts are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become availabie. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, deferred amounts refated to pensions is reported only on the Statement of
Net Position, and represents benefits that apply to future periods and so will not be recognized until that
time.

Compensated Absences

it is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate paid ieave benefits. The City does not offer sick
leave as a separate benefit from the paid ieave, and therefore, there is no separate liability. Employees
are allowed to accrue paid leave time to a maximum of 480 hours. in proprietary funds, vested paid leave
benefits are recognized as expenses when earned by the employee and unpaid benefits are liabilities of
those funds. Governmental fund types recognize the expenditure when benefits are paid. Paid leave
that is expected to be liquidated with expendabie available financial resources is reported as an
expenditure and e fund Habitity of the governmentat fund that will pay it. A liahifity for these amounts is
reported in the General Fund only if they have matured, for example, as the result of employee
resignaiions and retiremenis,

The governmental funds typically used in prior years to liquidate the liability for compensated absences
are any funds with payroll, which inciude the General Fund. Hourly empioyees have the option to
accumulatie overtime as compensatory pay, which accrues at overtime rates, up to 80 hours.

Long-term Obligations

The City reports all long-term debt on the Statement of Net Position. lLong-term debt and other
obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds.

9. Operating Revenues and Expenses, Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

10.

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. For the City, these revenues are charges for sales of water and wastewater services.
Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary
activity of the fund,

Non-operating revenues and expenses of the Gity are those revenues and expenses not directly retated
to the service provided by the fund. Non-operating revenues and expenses may inciude interest, grants,
and gain or foss on disposition of capital asseats.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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71. Fund Balance

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, in the governmental fund financial statements fund balances
are classified as follows;

Non-spendable—Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form or
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact,

Restricted—Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the City Charter, City Code,
state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

Committed—Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by a formal action by City
Council ordinance or resolution. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City
Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution)
that was employed when the funds were initially committed.

Assignec—Amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for a specific purpose, but are
neither restricied nor commitied. intent shouid be expressed by the City Council, the budget committee,
or a City offictal authorized by the City Council.

Unassigned-—All amounts not inciuded in other spendabie classifications.

The details of the fund balances are inciuded in the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds. As noted in
Note 1 B, restricted funds are used first a5 appropriate. Assigned Funds are reduced to the axtent that
expenditure authority has been budgeted by Council or the assignment has been changed by the City
Manager. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned or unassigned fund balances
are available, the City considers committed amounts reduced first, then assigned, then unassigned.

12. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between (a) asseis and deferred outfiows of resources and {b)
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in the City's financial statements. Governmeni-wide and
proprietary fund net position is divided into three components:

Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted net position - consists of restricied assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legisiation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or
faw or reguiations of other governments. The amount restricted at June 30, 2017, for donor or grantor
stipulated purposes was $605,403.

Unrestricted net position — all other net position is reported in this category,
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Other Post Employment Benefit Costs

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45 was effective for the City for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 201C. This Statement improves the relevance and usefuiness of financial reporting by
{a) requiring systematic, accrual-basis measurement and recognition of Other Post Employment Benefit
costs (expenses) over a period that approximates employees’ years of service and (b) providing
information about actuarial accrued iiabilities associated with OPER and whether and to what extent
progress is being made in funding the plan. The City received nofification from their actuarial firm that it
has ne liability under this standard; therefore the Statement is not applicahle to the City's Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

Net Pension Liability

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Na, 68
was effective for the City. The City participates in a cosi-sharing plan to provide pension benefits to
employees. Each cost-sharing governmenti reporis its proportionate share of the cumuiative net pension
liabitity.

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liabiiity, deferred outflows or resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the Oregon Public Employees Refirement System {PERS), and additions tfo/deductions from PERS'
fiduciary net pesition have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms,

Newly Implemented Accounting Standards

GASE Stafement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, issued August 2015, effective for the City as of
fiscal vear ending June 30, 2017, establishes disclosure requirements for governments offering tax
abalements.

Lincolin County, Lincoln City, Newport, Toledo, and Waldport together successfully appiied for an
enterprise zone, which was designated as ihe Lincoirn County Enterprise Zone by the Director of Business
Oregon on July 1, 2010. Economic Development Ailiance of Lincoin County acts as Local Zone Manager.
The enterprise zone provides three {o five year property tex exemptions for new investments in plant and
equipment by eligibie business firms o increase employment opportunities, to raise local incomes, to
attract invesiments by new and existing businesses and to secure and diversify the local economic base.
However, the gross dollar amount of property taxes abated for the fiscal year was zera.

I STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopied on a basis consisient with accounting principies generatty accepied in the United
States of America for the governmental funds. The annual budget for proprietary funds is adopted on a basis
not consisient with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America in orcer to
comply with Oregon Local Budget Law. All annua! appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

Oregon Local Budget Law establishes standard procedures relating io the preparation, adoption, and
execution of the annual budget. The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund seis the ievel by
which expenditures cannot iegally exceed appropriations. The level of control for the General Fund is by
department. Total personnel services, materials and services, capital outiay, debt service, contingency and
transfers are the levels of control for the remaining funas.
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Original appropriations may be increased through resolutions by transferring amounts between appropriaticns
in the same fund or by transferring from an appropriation in the general fund to an appropriation category in
another tund. A supplemental budget is needed to increase appropriations under certain circumstances.
Budget amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council,

Management may reassign resources within functions without seeking approval of the City Council.

iit. DETAILED NOTES

A

Deposits and Investments.

Deposits. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has adopted accounting principles generafly
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), which include standards o categorize depaosits {0 give an
indication of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the City at June 30, 2017. If bank deposits at year
end are not entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or by its agent in the City's name,
the City must disclose the custodial credit risk that exists. Deposits with financial institutions are comprised of
bank demand deposits. For deposits in excess of federal depository insurance, Oregon Revised Statutes
reguire the depository institution to participate in the Public Funds Coliateralization FProgram. The Public
Funds Collateralization Program is a multiple financial institution collateral pocl administered by the Oregon
State Treasurer's Office. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the carrying amounts of the City’s deposits
in various financial institutions were $241,545 and the bank balance was $266,932. Of the bank balance,
$266,832 was insured by the Federal Deposit insurance Corporation and sach type of account was coverad
by the Pubiic Funds Collateralization Program.

Custodial Credii Risk. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a2 bank failure, a
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City's formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk is to
deposit funds with qualified institutions. A gualified nstitution is defined by City policy as inciuding approved
security broker/dealers maintaining minimum net capitai of $10,000,000 and having = hisiory of at least 10
years of operation. These may inciude “primary” deaiers or regional dealers that qualify under the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15¢3-1 net capital requirements for brokers or dealers.

The Oregon State Treasurer is responsible for monitoring public funds held by bank depositories in excess of
FDIC insured amounts, and for assuring that public funds on deposit are coliateralized to the extent required
by Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 295. ORS Chapfer 295 requires depository banks to place and maintain
on deposit with & third party custodian bank securities having a value of 10 percent, 25 percent or 110 percent
of public funds on deposit depending primarily on the capitaiization lavel of the depastiory bank. Deposits in
the Pubiic Funds Collateralization Pool are not 100% guaranteed.

investments. The City of Waldport has invested funds in & bank TCD which is insured by the Federal
Deposit insurance Corporation and in the State Treasurer's Oregon Shori-Term Fund Local Government
Investment Pool during fiscal year 2017. The Oregon Short-Term Fund is the local government investment
poai for lacai governments and was established by the State Treasurer. It was created to meet the financial
and adminssirative responsibilities of federal arbifrage reguiations. The investments are regulated by the
Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregor Investment Council (ORS 294.805 to 204.805),
Local Government Investment Pool (LGP} is an unrated external investment pool managed by the State
Treasurer's office, which aliows governments within the siate to pool their funds for investment purposes.
The amounts invested in the pool are not classified by risk categories because they are not evidenced by
securities that exist in physical or book entry form as defined by GASB Statement No. 40.

In addition, the Oregon State Treasury LGIP distributes investment income on an amortized cost basis and
participants’ equity in the pool is determined by the amount of participant deposits, adjusted for withdrawais
and disiributed income. Accordingly, the adjustment to fair vaiue wouid not represent an expendabie
increase in the City's cash position.
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Invesimentis in the Oregon Staie Treasury LGIP are made under the provisions of ORS 294, These funds are
held in the City's name and are not subject to collaieralization reguirements or ORS 285.015.

Credit Risk. Credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, a
government will not be able fo recover the vaiue of invesiment or coliateral securities that are in the
possession of an ouiside party. The State of Oregon LGIP is nof registered with the U.S. Securiiies and
Exchange Commission as an investment company. The Oregon Revised Statutes and the Qregon
investment Council govern the Pool's investment policies. The State Treasurer is the investment officer of
the Pool and it is responsibie for all funds in the Pool. These funds must be invested and the invesiments
managed, as a prudent investor would, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. investments in the fund
are further governed by portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Shori-Term Funds Board, which esiablishes
diversification percentages and specifies the types and maturities of investmenis.

State statutes authorize the City fo invest primarily in general obiigations of the US Government and its
agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankerg’
acceptances, ceriain commercial papers, and the State Treasurer's investment pool, among others. The City
has a formal investment policy that is in accordance with State statuies and further iimits the liquidity and
diversification of the City's investments.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City is required to provide information about the concentration of credit risk
associated with its investments in one issuer that represents 5 percent or more of the {otal investments,
exciuding investments in external invesiment pools or these issued and explicitly guaranieed by the U.S.
Governmeni. The City has no such investments,

Interest Rafe Risk. Inierest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adverseiy affect the fair value
of an investment. The Oregon Short-Term Fund Board manages this risk by limiting the maturity of the
invesiments heid by the fund. The Ciy’s formal investment policy explicitly iimits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure o fair value loss arising from increasing interest raies by the following
maturity constraints. Funds iniended to be used {o pay for current operations of the City may be invested with
maturities not exceeding the dates of anficipated usage, but in nc event longer than the limit established by
ORS 284.135(1) (currently 18 months).

As of June 30, 2017, the City had the following investments:

Investment Type Maturity Fair Value
Ceriificate of Deposit - 18 months (restrictad) 1-5years $ 186,968
Total investments 3 166,968
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A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as shown an the Statement of Net Position foliows:

Bank ceposits § 241 545
Local Government invesiment Pool deposits 1,271,292
Petty Cash 200
Cash with County 43,204
Invesiments 166,968
Total $ 1,723,208

Semssee e

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds:

General Fund (includes restricted cash of $121,376) ¥ 604,508
Street Fund (inciudes restricted cash of $6,308) 171,044
Urban Renewal Construciion Fund 276,007
Urban Renewal Debt Senice Fund 25,323
Road District 5,313
Proprietary Funds:
Water Fund (includes restricted cash of $87,248) 177,017
Wastewater Fund {inciudes restricted cash of $70,792) 351,300
Public Works Fund 112,696
: 641,013
Total & 1,723,209
Receivables

Receivables as of fiscal year end are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Urban
Renewal
Debt
General Sireet Senvice Road District
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Accounts receivable 3 57840 % 11,000 % - % - 5 68,640
Property taxes 50,395 - 4,837 13,004 68.236
Total Government
receivables $ 108,035 § 11,000 % 4837 % 13,004 & 136,876
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Water Wastewater
Fund Fund Totals
Accounts receivabie $ 103,114 $ 73,832 $ 176,946
Assessments receivable 3,852 3,852
Less gllowance for
doubtful accounts {25,085) {25,085) (50,170)
Net business-type
accounis receivable % 78,029 $ 52,699 3 130,728

Al non-current property taxes and special assessments receivable are itreated as deferred inflows of
resources in the governmental funds. Accounts receivable for the Business-type Funds are reported on the
Statement of Net Position net of $50,170 aliowance for uncolisctibles. Other accounts and intergovernmental
receivabies are considered to be fully coliectible. Accordingly, no provision for estimated uncollectible has
been established for those accounts.

Properiy taxes are assessed as of January 1 and atfach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1.
Taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable on November 15, They may be paid in instalimenis due
November 15, February 15, and May 15 Taxes are hilled and coliected by the County of Lincoin and
remittance to the City is made at periodic intervais. For fiscal year 2016-17, the City imposed & property fax
rate of $2.2328 per $1,000 of assessed vaiue. After reduction for estimated shared offsets, fruncation, and
loss due to constitutional limits, this resuited in a net levy of $492 157 for general operations and a levy for
honded indebtedness of $82,278.

The City of Waldport's Urban Renewa! Agency, a component unif, receives revenues under Sectlion 1c,
Ariicle 1X of the Oregon Constitution, and ORS Chapter 457. For fiscal year 2016-17, the Agency assessed
$61,423.

The City of Waidport's Road District, a compenent unit, imposed a property tax rate of $0.6960 per $1,000 of
assessed vatue, which resulted in a net levy of $146,525.

Deferred Inflows of Resources
The Governmental Funds Balance Sheet reports deferred inflows of resources in connection with receivables
for revenues that are not considered to be available to iiguidate liabilities of the current period. At June 30,

2017, the General Fund, Urban Renewai Debi Service Fund and Road District Fund reporied deferred inflows
of resources for property taxes on the Balance Sheet of $47.586, $4,587, and $12,304, respectively.
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Capita! Assets

Capital asset activity for the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as foliows:

Governmentat activities:

Nondepraeciable capital assets

Land
Construction in progress

Total nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets

Buildings

Strest and storm systems
Park system

Eguipment

Total depreciable capital asssis

Less accumulated depregiation for

Buildings

Street and storm systems
Park system

Equipment

Total accumutaied depreciation
Net depreciable capital assets

Net governmenta! capital assets

Depreciation s allocated as a direct expense to the governmenta! programs as follows:

Generai government
Cuiture and recreation
Highways and siresets

Balance Additions / Deletions / Balance

8/30/2018 Transfers Transfers &/30/2017
$ 205,694 % - b - $ 205,894
83,144 - {61,432) 21,712
288,838 - (61,432) 227,406
72,171 - - 972,171
2,575,427 16,708 - 2,582,135
439,714 215,127 - 654,841
38,855 - (9,525) 28,330
4,026,167 231,835 {8,525) 4,248 477
(559.575) (34,996) - (594,571)
{961,943) (101,400} - (1,063,343)
{184,502} (28,813) - (214,415)
(35,648) (2,081 8,525 (28,204)
(1,741,668) {(168,390) 9,825 (1,900,533)
2,284,499 63,445 - 2,347,944
$ 2,573,337 & 63,445 % (61,432) $ 2,575,350
3 8,410

58,580

101,400

$ 168,390
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Business-type Activites

Neondsepreciable capital assets

Land

Water rights

Construction in progress

Total nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets

Buildings

Utility systems

Equipment

Total depreciabie capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation for

Buildings
Utility systems
Equipment

Total accumuiated depreciation
Net depreciable capital assets

Net governmental capital assets

Long-Term Debt

Business-Type Activities:

Revenue Bonds. Revenue bonds are an obligation of the City payable from net income of the Wastewater
Fund. The Debt Reserve requirement is $45,418 and the City was in compliance for the fiscal year 2016-

Balance Additions / Deijetions / Balance
6/30/2016 Transfers Transfers 6/30/2017
§ 277,721 5 - b §2rrr2d
54,801 11,342 66,143
326,451 132,909 458,360
658,973 144,251 803,224
558,506 - 558,506
12,927,383 - 12,827,383
427,220 - 427 220
13,913,100 - 13,813,109
{44,669) {11,170} - {55,839}
(4,307,118) (209,528} - {4,516,644)
(312,714} {22,318) {335,033
{4,664,409) {243.017) (4,807,516}
3,248,610 (243,017) 9,005,583
$ 9,907,583 $ (oB,7688) § - $ 9.808.817

2017, The future requirements for amortization of putstanding revenue bonds are as faliows:

issue of March 27, 2007
Original amount: $882,400
interest rate 4.125%

Purpose: South wastewater improvements
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USDA #52-08 payable from Sewer Fund

Fiscal Year Total Principal Interast
2017-18 $ 45418  § 17,118 § 28,299
2018-19 45,418 17,825 27,583
2018-20 45,418 18,560 26,858
2020-21 45,418 16,326 26,002
2021-22 45,418 20,123 25,205
2022-27 227,090 113,772 113,318
2027-32 227,090 139,285 87,835
2032-37 227,090 170,446 58,644
2037-42 188,083 169,616 18,467
Total $ 1,096,443 686,042 $ 410,401
Less current portion : (17,119}
3 668,923

Notes Payabie. The notes payable consist of a note payabie to the Oregon Business Development
Department (OBDD) from the net revenues of the Water Fund, & note pavabie o Umpgua Bank from the
Water Fund, and a new note payable to Business Oregon Infrastruciure Finance Autharity from the net
revenues of the Water and Wastewater Funds. The OBDD Water Fund note requires a reserve of $22,180.
The Umpgua Bank note requires coliateral in the form-of a certificate of deposit for $165,000. The BOIFA note
requires net revenues of the funds (o be 120% of the debt service payment. The City was in compiiance with
the reserve and the collaterat requirement for the year ending June 30, 2017,

The future requirements for amortization of the ouistanding note balances meniioned above are as foliows:

Issue date: September 30, 2003
Original amount. $519,800

Interest rate: 1%

Purpose: Water source improvements
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QBDD #501008 Payable from Water Fund

Fiscal Year Total Principal Interest
2017-18 5 20,145 $ 17,180 3 2,965
2018-19 20,145 17,352 2,782
20198-20 20,145 17.525 2,620
2020-21 20,145 17,701 2,444
2020-22 20,145 17,878 2,267
2022-27 100,725 82,108 8,619
2027-32 100,725 96,804 3,821
2032-33 20,771 19,048 823
Total 3 322,948 296,493 $ 28,453
Less current porticn {17,180}

5 279,313

issue date: January 15, 2013

Original amount: $185,000

Interest rate: variable; 3.0% at June 30, 2017
Purpose: Water reservoir rehabilitation

Umpqus #70011654 Pavable from Water Fund

Fiscal Year Total Principal interest
2017-18 3 19,000 $ 16,500 5 2,580
2018-19 18,626 16,500 2.126
2019-20 18,162 16,500 1,662
2020-21 17,698 16,500 1,188
2021-22 17.234 16,500 734
2022-23 &, 721 9,625 96
Total 5 100,531 92,125 $ 8,408
Less current portion (16,500)

3 75,625

The interest rate on this note is subject to change. The loan is associated with an 18-month certificate of
deposit held by the lender until the loan has been paid in full. On the maturity date of the CD, the interest rate
will change by the CD interest rate on that day plus an index of 2.55 percent. At June 30, 2017, the current
CD rate is 0.15 percent plus the index rate, resulting in a rate of 3.0 percent per annum.

Issue date: September 15, 2015

Original amount: $500,000

Interest rate: 3.51%

Purpose: Acguisition Public Works Faciity
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BOFA Pavabie from Pubiic Works Fund

Fiscal Year Total Principal interest
2017-18 $ 30,370 $ 14,181 $ 16,179
2018-18 30,370 14,689 15,681
2019-20 30,370 15,205 15,165
2020-21 30,370 15,738 14,632
2021-22 30,370 16,291 14,0679
2022-27 151.850 90,443 61,407
2027-32 151,85C 107,469 44 381
2032-37 151,850 127,702 24,148
2037-49 62,569 59,215 3,354
Total $ 668,969 460,942 $ 209,027
Less current portion {14,191}
$ 446,751

Business Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority requires the principal and interest to be paid solely from the
net revenues of the Waier and Wasiewaier systems under the debt covenant. The covenant also requires the
City to fix rates such that the net revenues are 120% of the annual debt service payments. For 2016-2017,
the City was in compliance.

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds. The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acguisition and
consiruction of major capital facilities. General obligation bands may be issued for both general government
and proprietary funds. Bonds are reported in the proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from
proprietary fund revenues, otherwise they are reported in the Governmental Activities. General obligation
bonds are direct obligaiions and piedge the full faith and credit of the City,

The City of Waidport reports all its general obligation bonds as obligations of the Governmental Activities and
they are payabie from ad valorem taxes of the General Fund. The debt reserve requirement is $86,060 and
the City was in compiliance for the fiscal vear 2016-2017. The future requirements for amortization of
outstanding bonds are as follows:

issue date: July 28, 1994

Original amount: §$1,583,300

Interest rate: 4.65%

Purpose: Wastewater plant consiruction
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Fiscal Year

2017-18
2018-19
2018-20
2020-21
2020-21
2021-26
2026-31
2031-35

Total

Less current portion

CITY OF WALDPORT
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USDA Payable from General Fund

Total Principal interest
$ 86,053 $ 38,989 % 47,083
86,053 40,744 45,309
86,063 42,578 43,475
86,053 44 494 41,559
86,053 46,496 3¢,557
430,265 265,812 164,453
430,265 331,250 99,015
256,637 235,489 21,147
S 1,547,432 1,045,851 & 501,580
{38,989)
$ 1,006,862

At year end, the City was approved for a financing contract with the Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority
{(IFA) for water treatment plant improvements. The project to be financed is a three phase improvement to
remedy deficiencies identified by the Oregon Health Authority water survey. The project budget is for
$185.000, with a ioan amount of $74,000, a forgivable loan amount of $111,000, and a City match of $10,000.
The terms include a one percent interes! rate payable over twenty years, with paymenis to be made from the
net revenues of the Water Fund. No funds had been drawn on the lcan.

The foliowing is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017:

Amount
Baiance Balance due within
6/30/2016 Additions Reductions 6/30/2017 one year
Business-type Activities:
Revenue bond - USDA  § 702483 & - F 16441 § 686042 0§ 17,118
Note payable - OBDD 313,503 - 17,010 296,493 17,180
Note payable - BOIFA 474,651 - 13,710 460,941 14,191
Note payabls - Umpgua 108,625 - 16,500 92.125 16,500
Tota! business-type
activifies 1,509,262 - 63,660 1,535,602 64,990
Governmental Activities:
Capital Lease 1,353 - 1,353 . -
Generat obligation bonds 1,083,163 - 37,311 1,045,852 38,980
Total governmental
activilies 1,084,516 - 38,664 1,045,852 38,989
Total $2,683778 ¥ - § 102324  §2581454 § 103978
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Changes in other liabilities. The foliowing is & summary of changes in other liabilities during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017:

Amount
Balance Batance due within
6/30/2016 Additions Reductions  6/30/2017 one year

Governmental Activities:
Vacation payable $ 30424 § 2743t $ 26420 $ 31426 § 31426

Business-type Activities:
Vacation payabie $ 30526 § 38227 0§ 33294 § 35539 § 35538

Fund Balance

Under GASB Statement No. 54, in the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified
as follows:

Governmental Fund Balances Urban
Urban Renewal Road
General Street Renewal Deb Service District
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Nonspendable;
inventory § - 8 10,767 § - % - % - 5 10787
Restricted:
Collateral 165,000 . - - - 165,000
Debt service 97,095 - - 25,573 - 122,668
Streets - 172,300 - - - 172,300
Footpaths and bicycle trails - - . - 6,012 6,012
System development-parks 24,282 - - - - 24,282
Urban renewal projects - - 276,006 - - 276,006
Assignaed;
Economic development 8.241 - - - - 8,241
Recreation 144,821 - - - - 144,821
Unassigned: 201,480 - - - - 201,489

I 640928 § 183,087 § 276,006 3 25573 5 8012 § 1131,586
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G. Restricted Net Position

Additionally, amounts are restricted due to their revenue source for streets, urban renewal and sysiem
development. Net position in these funds are classified as follows, alf of which is restricted by enabiing

jegislation:
Urban Road
General Sirest Renewsl District
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Net asseis restricted for;
Streets 3 - § 178,005 ¥ - % 6012 § 184,017
Footpaths and bicycle trails - 5,062 - - 5,082
Urban renewal construction - - 276,006 - 276,006
Urban revews: debt senice - - 25,573 - 25,573
System development-parks 24,282 - - - 24 282

$ 24282 5 183067 § 301579 % 6012 § 514,940

Business-type activities:

Water Waste Water Total
Net assets restricted for
System development $ 8508 § 25374 5 00,463
H. Interfund Transfers
Transfer out Transfer in

Govemmental Activities:
General Fund % 81,600 $ 155,456
Community Fund ‘ - 81,600
Street Fund 28,881 -
110,481 237,056

Business-type Activities:
Water Fund 85,587 -
Wastewater Fund 60,988 -
128,575 -
Total 5 237,066 $ 237,056

The fransfers from the Water, Wastewater and Street Funds are routine in nature and occur annually. These
are transfers to the General Fund to support the administration of the City. The transfer from the General Fund
to the Community Fund is also an annual, routine transfer to support the Community Fund.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION

A.

Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivabie from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disaliowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
consiitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amour, if any, of expenditures which may be disaliowed by
the granior cannot be determined at this iime although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be
immateriai,

Public Employees Retirement System

Pian Description. The City of Waldport contribuies to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund
{OPERF). The City is not @ member of a State Local Government Rate Pool (SLGRP}). Non-pooled
employers, which include the City, participate in two pians. One is an agent multiple-employer pension pian
for purposes of Tier 1/Tier 2 PERS pension liabilities, The other is & cost sharing plan for purpeses of the
Oregon Public Service Retirement Pian {OPSRP) pension liabilities. Both are administered by the State of
Oregon Public Employees Refirement System (PERS). OPERS issues a pubiicly available Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuation that can be obtained at:

ntto:iwww .oregon gov/pers/iPages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-information.aspx.

Pension Benefits - The PERS retirement allowance may be selected from 13 retirement benefit oplions.
These options inciude annuities, survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on
vears of service and final average salary. Tier One/Tier Two Retiremeni Benefit pian is closed o new
members hired on or after August 28, 2003.

Death Benefits - Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of
the member's account balance {accumulated contribuficns and interest) and empioyer funds equal to
the account balance, provided certain conditions are met.

Disabllity Benefits - This is available for gualifying empioyees for both duty and non-duty connected
causes,

Benefit Changes After Retirement - Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities
investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the
market vaiue of equity investiments. Also, monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living
changes.

OPSRP Pension Program (ORS Chapter 238A).

Pension Benefits - The Pension Program provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29,
2003. OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are based upon the
number of years of service and the final average salary.

Death Benefits - Upon the death of & non-retired member, the beneficiary receives for life 50 percent of
the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member.

Disability Benefits - This is available for quaiifying empioyees for both duty and non-duty connected
causes.

Benefit Changes After Refirement - Monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-iiving
changes.
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OPSRP Individual Account Program {OPSRP IAP)

Pension Benefits — An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established
or on the date the roliover account was estabiished. I the empioyer makes oplional employer
contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the
date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member
reaches normal retirement age, the date the 1AP is terminated, the date the active member becomes
disabied, or the date the active member dies.

Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts
in his or her employae account, rollover account, and vesied employer accoun{ as & lump-sum
.payment or in egual instaliments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option.
Fach distribution option has g $200 minimum distribution limit.

Death Benefits — Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in @ lump sum the
member's account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution
account balance. if a retired member dies before the installment payments are completed. the
heneficiary may receive the remaining instaliment payments or choose a lump sum payment.

Recordkeeping — PERS contracts with VOYA Financial to maintain {AP participant records.

Contributions:

PERS funding policy providas for monthly employer confributions at actuarially determined rates. These
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to  ascumutate sufficient assets to

GPSRP members for the fiscal year,

Emplayer contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2014, actuariai  valuation. The
state of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and poiitical subdivisions have made lump sum
payments o establish side accounts, and their rates have been reduced.

Empioyer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018, were $88,854. This consisted of $40,817 from the
City and $48,037 paid by the City on behaif of employees. These added to the City's fiduciary net position.

Pension Assefs, Liabiiities, Pension Expense and Defarred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions:

At June 30, 2016, the City reported & liability of $304.046 for its proportionate share of the net pension
iiahility. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension fiability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2014, rolied
forward to June 30, 2016. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
City's long-ferm share of contributions to the pension plan refative to the projected confributions of all
participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, the City's proportion was 0.00202731 percent,
which was an decrease of 0.00083517 from its proporiion measured as of June 30, 2015, For the year ended
June 30, 2017, the City's actuarially determined pension expense was $54,535. At June 30, 2017, the City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources reiated to pensions from the
foliowing sources:
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Deferred Daferred
Quffiows of inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 10,088 ] .
Changes in assumptions 64,910 -
Net difference between projected and actual eamings on investments 60,128 -

Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions - (51,538)

and proportionate share of system contributions 16,832 -
Contribtuions subsequest fo the MD 37,031 -
Total $ 180,968 $ {51,538)

The $190.968 reported as deferred outflow of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension Hability in the vear
ended June 30, 2017.

Other amounts reported as deferred outfiows of resources and deferred inflows of rescurces related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

2018 $ (16,850)
2019 (16,850)
2020 . (38,536)
2021 (27,392)
2022 (2,771)

Thereafter S

Total $(102,399)

Actuarial Assumptions

The employer confribution rates effective July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2017, were set using the projected
unit credit actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Deafined Benefit Plan,
this method produced an empioyer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cest {the
estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year),
(2) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a
fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 20 vears.

For the OPSRF Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an
empioyer confribution rate consisting of {a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to
finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year}, (b) an amount for the amortization
of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded
actuarial accrued liabiiities being amortized over 16 vears.

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2013, actuarial vaiuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:
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Valuation Date iDecember 31, 2013
Measurement date June 30, 2015
Experience Study 2014, published September 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial assumptions:
inflation rate 2.75 percent
Long-term expected rate of return  ;7.75 percent
Discount rate 7.75 percent
Projected salary increases 3.75 percent
Cost of living adjustments (COLA)  |Blend of 2% COLA and graded COLA (1.25% / 1 5%) in
accordance with More decision; blended based on service.

Mortality Healthy retirees and bencficiaries:

RP-200C Sex-distinct, generational per Scale A4, with collar
adiustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

Active members:

Mortality rates are a percentage of healthy retirees rates that
vary by group, as described in the vaiuation.

Disabled retirees:

Mortality rates are a percentage (65% for males, 80% for

females) of the RP-2000 static combined disabied mortality
sex-distinct table.

Actuariat valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumpfions
about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The methods and
assumptions shown above are based on the 2014 Experience Study, which reviewed experience for the four-
year period ending on December 31, 2014,

To develop an anaiytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in July
2013, the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Miliman's capitai market
assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Councif's (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows
Milliman's assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the
OIC long-term target asset allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used o map the target
aliocation to the asset classes shown betow. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of
underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not
based on historicai returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic madel,

Assumed Assef Allocation:

Asset Class/Strategy  |Low Range High Range Target

Cash 0| % 3% 01%
Debt Securities 15 28] 201
Public Equity 32.5 42.5 37.s
Private Equity 13.5) 21.5 17.5
Real Estate 9.5 15.5 12.5
Alternative Equity 0 12.5 12.5
Opporiunity Porticlic 0 3 O1Y%
Total f 100

41



CITY OF WALDPORT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return;

Compound Annual
Assets Class Farget Retumn (Geometric)
Core Fixed Income 8.00% 4.00%
Short-Term Bonds 8.00 3.61
Bank/Leveraged [.ocans 3.0¢ 542
High Yield Bonds 1.00 8.20
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 15.75 6.70
Small Cap US Equities 1,31 £.99
Micro Cap US Equities 1.31 7.01
Deweloped Foreign Equities 13.13 6.73
Emetrging Foreign Equities 4,12 7.25
Nen-US Small Cap Equiiises 1.88 7.22
Private Equity 17.50 7.97
Real Estate (Property) 10.00 5.84
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.69
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 2.50 4.64
Hedge Fund of Funds - Event-driven 0.83 6.72
Timber 1.88 5.85
Farmiand 1.8 6.67
infrastructure 2.75 7.13
[Commodities 1.88 4.58
Assumed infiation - Mean 2.50%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension {iability was 7.50 percent. Prior year was 7.75 percent.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from pian
members and confributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially
determined, Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
availabie 1o make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members, Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of refurn on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Pian was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the totai pension liabfiity.
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Measurement Date [MD] of the Net Pension Liability/{Asset) [NPL/{A)] 6/30/2016
Actuarial Valuation Date (fiability rolled forward to MD) 12/31/2014
Discount rate 7.50%
Empioyer's proportionate share at prior MD 0.00286248%
Employer's proportionate date at MD 0.00207310%
Employer's proportionate share of system NPL/(A) at prior MD $ 164,348
Employer's proportionate share of system NPL/(A) at MD $ 304,346
Sensitivity: NPL/(A) using discount rate 1.00% lower $ 491,418
Sensitivity: NPL/A) using discount rate 1.00% higher $ 147,987
Employer Pension Expense for Measurement Period
Empioyer's proportionate share of system Pension Expense/(Income) 3 54,535
Net Amortization of deferred amounts from:
Changes in proporiionate share {12,380)
Differences between empioyer coniributions and
empioyer's proportionate share of system contributions 4925
Employer's Total Pensions txpense/{income) $ 47,070

Changes Subseguent to the Measurement Date

As described above, GASE 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be determined based on
the benefit terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit {erms that occurs after that date
are reflected in amounts reported for the subsequent Measurement Daie. However, paragraph 80f of GASB
68 requires employers to briefly describe any changes between the Measurement Date and the empioyer's
reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the empioyer's share of the coliective Nei
Pension Liability, along with an estimate of the resuiting change, i availabie.

The assumptions, methods and plan provisicns used in these caiculations are described in the Oregon PERS
system-wide GASB 68 reporting summary dated February 8, 2017, however on July 28, 2017 Oregon's
Public Employees Retirement Sysiem Board lowered the assumed earnings rate from 7.5% to 7.2% adding
2.1 pillion to the system’s unfunded Hability. The unfunded liabilily is now 24.1 bilion, an increase in
employers’ contribution will be needed. The amount of increase is unknown at this date.

43



CITY OF WALDPORT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

D. Risk Management

The City is exposed {o various risks of loss related to tortg; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City caries commercial insurance. Workers'
compensation insurance is also provided through a commercial carrier. There has been no significant
reduction in insurance coverage from the prior year.

The City is & member of City/County Insurance Services (CCIS) for workars' compensation and property
insurance. In 1981 the League of Gregon Cities joined together with the Association of Oregon Cities to form
CCIS, 2 pubiic entity risk pool currenily operating as 2 common risk management and insurance program for
approximately 265 municipal corporations and associaied entities in the state of Oregon. CCIS ig seff-
sustaining through member premiums and reinsures through commercial companies for claims in excess of
$2 mitlion for each insured event.

B. Commitments

At June 30, 2017, the City is invoived in the various phases of improvement projects. The significant contract
and remaining amount is shown below:

Qriginal Qutstanding

Contract Coniract Percentage of

Fund Description Amount Amount Complation
Water Fund Westech Engineering $ 24000 % 11,349 53%
Water Fund Westech Engineering 44 000 31,272 29%

$ 68,000 § 428621
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SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS*

{(bic) Plan fidugciary
{a) (D) District's proportionate  net position as
District's District's share of the nat a percentage
Year proportion of the  proporiionate share (e) pension liability/asset of total
Ended net pension of the net pension District's as a percentage of its pension
June 30, liability {asset) Hability (asset) covered payroil covered payroll fiability
2014 0.00335815% 3 171,371 § 851,864 26.29% 92%
2015 0.00335815% 3 (76,120) % 855,895 -11.61% 103.6%
2018 0.00286248% $ 164,348 § 659,695 20.37% 91.9%
2017 0.00202731% 3 304,346 § 756,896 40.22% 80.5%
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
{b}
Contributions in
relation to the (a-b) {bfc)
Year (&) Contractuatly coniraciually Contribution (c) Contributions
Ended reguired reguired deficiency District's covered as a percent of
June 30, contribution contribution {excess) payroll covered payroll
2014 3 81.010 % 81,010 % - 3 855,605 12.4%
2015 $ 74,888 § 74,988 % - $ 859,805 11.4%
2016 $ 86,282 § 86,282 § - § 756,969 11.4%
2017 ¥ 88,854 § 88,854 § - $ 800,362 11.1%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuariai determined at December 31 and rolled

forward to the measurement date.

“This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show infarmation for 10 years. However,
unti a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the

requirsd supplementary information is availabie.
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MAJOR FUNDS

General Fund — This fund is used to account for and report resources and activities directly associated
with carrying out the operations related io the City's basic objectives. This fund is used to account for and
report all financial resources not accounted for and reporied in another fund. The primary sources of
revenue are properiy taxes and intergovernmentat revenue. The General Fund also accounts for servicing
of governmental long-term debt.

Special Revenue Fundgs

The special revenue funds account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are iegaily
restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes.

Street This fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legaliy restricted or commitied to expenditure for specified purposes. The primary sources of
revenue are state highway fund revenues and charges for services. Expenditures are for sireet
repairs and maintenance. The Waldport Road District, & separate taxing entity, contracts with the
streat fund for the purpose of carrying out street improvement projects.

Urban Renewal Fund - This Special Revenue fund accounts for and reports the proceeds of specific
revenues sources that are restricted to expenditure for project activities of the Urban Renewal Plan.
Loan proceeds are used {o construct or carry ouf these projects,

Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for and reports the specific tax increment
revenues that are restricted for expenditures for debt service on Urban Renewal projects. Revenues
raised under Section 1c, Articie X of the Oregon Constitution, and ORS Chapter 457 are pledged
irrevocabie to the retirement of indebtedness.

Waldport Special Road District #3 - This Speciat Revenue fund is used to account for and report
property taxes and transactions retated {o road improvements.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues:
Property taxes
Franchise and room taxes
Intergovernmeantal
Fees and charges for services
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfits
Interest earnings
Donations and grants

Total revenues
Expenditures:
General government:
Administration
Land use ptanning
Public safety
Debt service
Contingency
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Other financing scurces (uses):
Interfund ioan
Transfer in
Transfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund batance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

See auditor's report.

CITY OF WALDPORT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Budget

Origina! Final Actual Variance
$ 534,990 $ 554,990 572,875 $ 17,985
157,200 157,200 203,365 46,165
55,900 55,900 63,308 7,408
34,018 34,018 29,069 (4,949)
13,200 13,200 13,914 714
17,300 17,300 14,304 (2,996)
1,300 1,500 4,473 2,573

- - 2,500 2,500
834,508 834,508 503,908 69,400
415,524 415,524 399,569 15,955
63,28: 63,281 59,672 3,609
378,230 378,230 359,197 19,033
85,053 86,053 86,053 -
23,439 23,43% - 23,439
966,527 566,527 904,491 62,036
{132,519 {132,019 {383) 131,436
155,456 155,456 155,456 -
(112,500} (112,900) {81,600 31,300
42,555 42,556 73,855 31,300
(B9,463) (89,463) 73,273 162,736
371,000 371,000 390,309 19,309
$ 281,537 $ 281,537 463,582 $ 182,045
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BUDGET AND ACTUAL

STREET FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues:

Intergovernmental & 117,000 & 117,000 $ 124,381 $ 7,381

Grant proceeds 54,690 54,690 - (54,690)

Charges for services 142,500 142,500 140,000 {2,500}

Interest earning 400 400 1,396 996
Total revenues 314,590 314,590 265,777 (48,813)
Expenditures:

Highways and streets:

Materials and services 235,600 235,600 214,303 21,297

Capital outlay 60,950 80,950 16,707 64,243

Contingency 23,310 23,310 - 23,310
Total expenditures 319,860 339,860 231,010 108,850
Excess {deficiency} of revenues

over {under) expenditures (5,270) {(25,270) 34,767 80,037
Other financing sources {useas):

Transfer out {28,881) (28,881) (28,881) -
Net change in fund balance (34,151) (54,151) 5,886 60,037
Fund balance at beginning of year 115,000 135,000 175,290 40,290
Fund balance at end of vear $ B0,84% $ 80,848 181,176 $ 100,327

Reconcitiation to generally accepted accounting principtes basis:

Adjust for change in inventory

GAAP basis fund balance

See auditor's report.
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CITY OF WALDPORT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
URBAN RENEWAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budget
Criginal Final Actual Variance

Revenues:

Interest earnings % 700 % 700 % 2,602 % 1,902
Expenditures:

UR #1 Construction 33,986 33,986 6,570 27,416

UR #2 Construction 123,682 123,682 2,988 120,694

WUR #3 Construction - - - -

Contingency 124,932 124,932 - 124,932
Total expendituras 282,600 282,600 9,558 273,042
Excess {deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures {281,900) (281,900) (6,956) 274,944
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer out - - - -

Loan Proceeds 120,000 120,000 120,000 ~
Total other financing sources (uses): 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
Net change in fund balance (161,900) (161,900) 113,044 274,944
Fund batance at beginning of year 161,900 161,900 162,962 1,062
Fund balance at end of year $ - $ - $ 276,006 $ 276,006

See auditor's report,
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‘ CITY OF WALDPORT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
URBAN RENEWAL DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 38, 2017

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues:

Tax increment revenues $ 59,600 $ 598,600 $ 55,608 $ 8

Interest 100 100 488 388
Total revenues 59,700 55,700 60,096 396
Expenditures:

Debt service 125,000 125,000 120,105 4,895
Total expenditures 125,000 125,000 120,105 4,895
Excess of (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (65,300) (65,300) (60,009 5,291
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer in 35,000 35,000 - (35,000)
Net change in fund balance (30,300) (30,300) (60,009) (29,709)
Fund balance at beginning of year 85,100 85,100 85,582 482
Fund balance at end of year s 54,800 $ 54,800 $ 25,573 $ (29,227)

See auditor's report.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROAD DISTRICT FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance

Revenues:

Property taxes $ 139,500 $ 139,800 $ 143,625 g 3,725

Interest earnings 100 100 280 180
Total revenues 140,000 140,000 143,205 2,905
Expenditures:

Highway and streets:

Materials and services 143,000 143,000 140,414 2,586

Net change in fund balance (3,000) (3,000) 3,491 6,491
Fund balance at beginning of year 3,000 3,000 2,521 {479)
Fund balance at end of year $ - % - $ 6,012 S 6,012

See auditor's report.
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CITY OF WALDPORT

SUPPLEMNTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2017

BUDGETARY FUND

The City includes the fund listed in its annual budget. This fund is combined with the General Fund for
purposes of presentation under generally accepted governmental accounting standards.

Community Fund - This budgetary fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or assigned to expenditure for specified purposes. The orimary
sources of revenue are from Lincoln County Library District, charges for services, and General Fund
Transfers. The fund accounts for fibrary services, parks and recreation, the community center and
economic development.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

CITY OF WALDPORT

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues:
Charges for services
Intergovernmental revenue
Donations and grants
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Personnel services
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Contingency
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses).
Transfer in

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund baiance at end of year

See auditor's report.

Original Final Budget Actual Variance
% 19,400 $ 19,400 $ 22,482 g 3,082
165,585 165,585 165,585 -
147,180 147,180 197,823 50,643
332,165 332,165 385,890 53,725
175,649 175,649 171,204 4,445
135,442 135,442 113,775 21,667
185,230 185,230 153,695 31,535
5,594 5,594 - 5,594
501,915 501,215 438,674 63,241
{169,750) (169,750) {52,784) 116,966
112,900 112,900 81,600 (31,300)
(56,850) (56,850) 28,816 85,666
126,550 126,550 148,530 21,980
$ 69,700 $ £9,700 $ 177,346 $ 107,646
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CITY OF WALDPORT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (GENERAL FUND AND COMMUNITY FUND)
FOR GAAP BASIS PRESENTATION*
June 30, 20617

(zeneral Community Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents % 261,818 $ 175,725 $ 437,543
Investments 166,968 - 166,568
Receivables (net)
Accounts receivabie 43,563 14,677 57,640
Property taxes 50,395 - 50,385

Total assets 522,744 189,802 712,546
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,042 12,456 14,498
Unearned revenues 9,525 - g,525
Total liabilities 11,567 12,456 24,023
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailabie revenue - property taxes 47,595 - 47,5985
FUND BALANCES

‘Restricted 286,377 - 286,377

Assigned - 153,062 153,062

Unassigned 177,205 24,284 201,489
Total fund balances 463,582 177,346 640,928
Total tiabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances ¢ 522,744 $ 189,802 & 712,546

*The Community Fund does not meet the criteria for a Special Revenue Fund under Governmental Accoun
Standards Board Statement #54 as it does not have a specific, outside revenue stream. Howaver, it meel
criteria of a Special Revenue Fund under Oregon Budget Law. Therefore, for GAAP presentation purposes,
the Community Fund is combined with the General fund, due to the budgetary perspective difference.

See auditor's report. 54



CITY OF WALDPORT

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
{GENERAL FUND AND COMMUNITY FUND)

FOR GAAP BASIS PRESENTATION=*

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues.
Property taxes
Franchise and room taxes
Intergovernmental

Fees, licenses and charges for services

Fines and forfits
Interest earnings
Donations and grants

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current.
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Economic development

Capitai outlay

Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses),
Transfer in
Transfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund batances at beginning of yesar

Fund balances at end of vear

General Community  Eliminations Total
$ 572,976 $ - $ - $ 572,976
203,365 - - 202,365
63,308 165,585 - 228,893
23,472 22,484 - 45,856
14,304 - - 14,304
4,473 - - 4,473
2,500 197,823 - 200,323
884,398 385,892 - 1,270,290
438,731 - - 439,731
359,197 - - 359,197
- 270,995 “ 270,995
- 13,985 - 13,985
- 153,696 - 153,696
86,053 - - 86,053
384,981 438,676 - 1,323,657
{(583) (52,784) - {53,367}
155,456 81,600 - 237,056
(81,600} - - {81,600}
73,856 81,600 - 155,456
73,273 28,816 - 102,089
390,309 148,530 - 538,839
$ 463,582 $ 177,346 % - § 640,928

*The Community Fund does not meet the criteria for a Special Revenue Fund under Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement #54 as it does not have & specific, outside revenue stream. However, it meets the
criteria of a Special Revenue Fund under Oregon Budget Law. Therefore, for GAAP presentation purposes,

the Community Fund is combined with the General Fund, due to the budgetary perspective difference.

See auditor's report.
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CITY OF WALDPORT

SUPPLEMNTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2017

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for and report operations that are financed and operated in & manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the City's council is that the costs of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the City's council has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for
accountability purposes.

Water - This fund is used to account for and report the activities of the water operations. The primary source
of revenue is charges for services.

Wastewater - This fund is used to account for and report the activities of the wastewater operations. The
primary source of revenue is charges for services.

Public Works Internal Service Fund - This fund accounts for and reports services provided to other funds

and outside entities. It serves as a centralized poo! of labor, materials, equipment and vehicles o provide
these services. The primary source of revenue is charges for services.
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CITY OF WALDPORT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

WATER FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budget
Original Finaf Actual Variance

Operating revenues.

Charges for services $ 633,360 $ 633,360 $ §15,942 $ {17,418)
Operating expenses:

Materials and services 467,600 487,600 479,430 8,170

Capital outlay 423,000 423,000 124,08% 298,901

Contingency 27,091 7,041 - 7,041
Total operating expenses 917,691 917,641 603,528 314,112
Operating income {loss) (284,331) {284,281} 12,413 296,694
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):

Grant proceeds 252,750 252,750 16,236 {236,514)

Loan Proceeds 74,600 74,000 2,443 (71,557}

interest earnings 700 700 1,813 1,113

Debt service (39,6773 (38,727} {38,721) 5
Total noneperating revenue (expenses) 287,773 287,723 {16,229 {306,952
Income (iloss) before transfers 3,442 3,442 {6,816) (10,258)
Transfers out {65,587] {65,587} (65,587) -
Change in net working capital (62,145) (62,145) (72,403) (10,258}
Net working capital at beginning of year 188,900 188,900 266,629 77,72%
Net working capital at end of year $ 128,755 $ 126,755 194,226 $ 67,471
Reconciliation te generally accepted accounting principies basis

Change in receivable 7,518

Change in inventory 4,927

Change in accrued interest pavable 106

Change in current portion of long-term debt {170)
GAAP basis net working capital $ 206,607

See auditor's report.
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CITY OF WALDPORTYT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
WASTEWATER FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 20, 2017

Budget
Criginal Final Actual Variance

Operating revenues:

Charges for services $ 611,620 % 611,620 $ 613,154 $ 1,534
Operating expenses:

Materials and services 483,100 483,100 438,332 44,768

Capital outiay ' 80,000 aG,000 20,152 69,848

Contingency 43,896 43,896 - 43,896
Total operating expenses 616,996 616,996 458,484 158,512
Operating income (icss) {5,376) {5,376) 154,670 160,046
Nonoperating revenue {expenses);

Interest earnings 1,000 1,000 2,868 1,868

Debt service (45,418) {45,418} {45,418) -
Total nonoperating revenue {expenses) (44,418} (44,418) (42,550) 1,868
income (loss) before transfers and contributions (45,7943 (4¢,794) 112,120 161,914
Transfers out (60,988) (60,988) (60,988 -
Change in net working capital (110,782) {110,782) 51,132 161,914
Net working capital at beginning of year 232,200 232,200 330,458 08,258
Net working capital at end of year $ 121,418 $ 121,418 381,590 $ 260,172
Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles basis

Change in receivable aliowance . 7,518

Change in assessmenis receivable (1,058)

Change in inventory (2,733

Change in accrued interest payable 169

Change in current portion of iong-term debt (678)
GAAP basis net working capital $ 384,808

See auditor's report,
58



CITY OF WALDPORT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
PUBLIC WORKS INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Operating revenues;
Charges for services

Operating expenses;
Personnel services
Materials and services -
Capital outlay
Debt service
Contingency
Total operating expensss
Operating income (loss)
Neonoperating revenue (expenses):
L.oan proceeds

Miscelianeous
Interest earnings

Total nonoperating revenue {expenses)
Income {loss) before transfers
Transfers in

Change in net working capital

Net working capital at beginning of year

Net working capital at end of vear

Reconciliation te generally accepted accounting principles basis

Change in payroil liabilities
Change in accrued compensation payable
Change in accrued interest payable

Change in current portion of long term debt
GAAP basis net working capital

See gudiior's repot.
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Budget

Original Final Actual Variance
$ BB85,0600 $ 885,000 889,690 3 4,690
760,508 760,508 756,946 3,562
73,300 73,300 71,919 1,381
10,000 78,300 75,172 3,128
30,370 30,370 30,370 -
33,301 33,301 - 33,301
907,479 Q75,779 934,407 41,372
(22,479) {90,779) {44,717) 46,062
800 800 843 43
800 800 843 43
(21,679} (89,878} (43,874) 46,105
(21,679} {89,979 (43,874} 46,105
124,347 260,947 949 877 {161,070
$ 102,668 $ 170,568 56,003 $(114,965)

(5,013)

280

(481)

3 50,789
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

September 14, 2017

To the City Council
City of Waldport, Oregon:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the City of Waidport, Oregon as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectivaty comprise the City’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2017,

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in pianning and performing our audi, we considered the City of Waldport's internal contro! over financial
reporting (internal cantrol) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanses for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not
axprass an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonabie possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is iess severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit atiention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal conirol over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify afl deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider io be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Cther Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Waldport's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compiiance with certain provisions of laws, reguiations,
confracts and grant agreements, noncompiiance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinior on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we ¢o not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reporied under
Government Auditing Standards,
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely 10 describe the scope of our testing of internal conirol and compiliance and
the results of that tesiing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal conirol or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compiiance. Accerdingly, this communication is not
suitabie for any other purpose.

LG L

> ‘L;ud
Emerald CPA Group, LLP
Ceriified Public Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

September 14, 2017

To the City Council
City of Waldport, Oregon:

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Waldport (“the City”) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2017, We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Compiroller General of the United States and the provisions of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon
Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Oregon Secretary of State. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of
malerial misstatement.

Compliance

Ag part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic financial staterments are free of
material misstatement, we performed tesis of s compiiance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, grants, including provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Qregon Administrative
Rutes OAR 162-10-000 fo 162-10-320, as set forth below, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
matertal effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and
disclosures, which included, but were not limited to the following:

The use of approved depositories to secure the deposit of public funds (ORS Chapter 295).
The reguirements relating to debt,

The requirements reiating to the preparation, adoption and execution of annual budgets (ORS
Chapter 294).

The requirements relating to insurance and fidelity bond coverage.

The appropriate laws, rules and regulations pertaining to programs funded wholiy or partially by other
governmental agencies,

The statutory requirements pertaining to the investment of public funds (ORS Chapter 294),

The requirements pertaining to the awarding of public contracts and the censtruction of public
improvements (ORS Chapters 278A, 2798, 270C).

The statutory requirements related to the use of revenue from taxes on motor vehicie fuel funds.
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in connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City of Waldport
was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, reguiations, contract and grants, inciuding
the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through
162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the
Oregon Secretary of State.

OAR 162-10-230 internal Control

tn planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Waidport's internal control over financial
reporting (internat control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than 2 matarial weakness,
yet impertant enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal contro! over financial reporting was for the fimited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal coniral that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these iimitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider fo be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Furpose of this Report
This report is intended sotely for the information and use of the City council and management of the City of

Waldport and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these parties.

Emerald CPA Group LLPVY
Certified Public Accountants
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